
 

 High Peak Borough Council 

 
 

 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY REVIEW SUB-COMMITTEE AGENDA 
 

 

Date: 
 

Monday, 28 February 2022 

Time: 
 

6.00 pm 

Venue: 

 

Virtual Meeting 

 
PART 1 

1. Apologies for Absence  

2. Declarations of Interest  

 (a) Disclosable Pecuniary Interest 
 

(b) Other interests 

 

3. Scrutiny Review (Pages 3 - 22) 

 
MARK TRILLO 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND MONITORING OFFICER 
 

Membership of Overview and Scrutiny Review Sub-Committee 

Councillor A McKeown (Chair) Councillor T Ashton 
Councillor A Barrow Councillor J Collins 

Councillor D Greenhalgh Councillor P Hardy 
Councillor D Lomax  

 

 

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL  

  

Overview and Scrutiny Review Sub-Committee 

  

28 February 2022 

  

 

TITLE: 
 

Scrutiny Review 
 

EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR: 
 

Councillor Anthony McKeown – Leader of 

the Council 
 

CONTACT OFFICER: 
 

Andrew Stokes – Chief Executive 
 

WARDS INVOLVED: 

 

 

Non-Specific 

 

  

Appendices Attached  

Appendix A – Centre for Governance and Scrutiny (CfGS) – Scrutiny Review 

Appendix B – CfGS Recommendations – Suggested Response    

  

  

1.  Reason for the Report  

  

1.1  The purpose of this report is to consider the response to the feedback 

provided by the Centre for Governance and Scrutiny (CfGS) following 

completion of their review of the Council’s Scrutiny arrangements.   

  

  

2.  Recommendations  

  

2.1     It is recommended that the Sub-Committee:   

  

 Consider the feedback from CfGS as detailed in Appendix A; and   

 Consider the suggested response to the recommendations set out in 

Appendix B. 

 

2.2 Consider what further investigation (if any) are needed to meet the terms of 

reference for the review of arrangements for overview and scrutiny within the 

Council.    

  

  

 

 

 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



3.  Executive Summary  

  

3.1  CfGS were commissioned to conduct a review of the Council’s Overview & 

Scrutiny arrangements. The review was intended to give the Council an 

external perspective on how well the current model is functioning.   

  

3.2 CfGS made recommendations across 8 areas of work for improvement. In 

order to assist members of the Sub-Committee with their considerations 

attached at Appendix B is a summary of CfGS’s recommendations within a 

suggested response.    

  

  

4.        How this report links to Corporate Priorities   

  

4.1 Effective scrutiny is essential in order that the Council can successfully 

achieve its objectives and priorities set out in the Corporate Plan.  

  

  

5. Alternative Options  

 

5.1 The report offers a range of options for consideration by members. 

  

  

6.  Implications  

  

6.1 Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)  

No relevant implications at this time. 

  

6.2  Workforce  

No relevant implications at this time. 

  

6.3  Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment  

No relevant implications at this time. 

  

6.4  Financial Considerations  

No relevant implications at this time. 

  

6.5  Legal  

 A number of the suggested responses may require changes to the 

Council’s constitution which would need to be considered by the 

Council’s Constitution Sub-Committee.  

  

6.6  Climate Change 

 No relevant implications at this time. 

  

 

 

Page 4



6.7  Consultation 

The proposals from the CfGS include a section on improving public 

engagement. 

 

6.8  Risk Assessment  

 No relevant implications at this time. 

 

  
ANDREW P STOKES  

Chief Executive  

  

     

Background Papers Contact details 

As attached to the report 

 

Andrew Stokes  
Chief Executive 
Andrew.stokes@highpeak.gov.uk 

 

  

Page 5



7. Detail 

 

7.1  Maintaining effective scrutiny is a challenge for all local authorities and no 

council can profess excellence in scrutiny across the board – there are always 

areas of weakness which, left untended, can develop into flaws in scrutiny 

which can have a more significant impact on effectiveness overall.   

  

7.2  At the first meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Review Sub Committee the 

following aspects were put forward for the review: 

 

 To ensure that the Council continues to make the best use of its resources 

 The revised guidance published by the Ministry for Housing, Communities 

and Local Government and the “Good Scrutiny Guide” issued by the 

Centre for Public Scrutiny. 

 The changing environment in which the Council operates. 

 To investigate ways that the scrutiny process can better involve and 

engage local residents as part of the policy development and decision 

making process. 

 Enable the Council to better support the role of ward members and its 

representatives on outside bodies by considering options around: 

 

 how scrutiny considers ward issues 

 how members appointed to outside bodies can better feed-in 

information from those bodies 

  

7.3  The Local Government Association (LGA) were approached to ascertain the 

most appropriate way forward for conducting a review. The LGA referred the 

Council to the Centre for Governance and Scrutiny (CfGS).   

  

7.4  The CfGC provides external support to give assurance and advice on 

improving governance in local authorities. They offer a number of 

improvement reviews which help local authorities to evaluate and improve 

their overview and scrutiny functions – governed by the fundamental [“four 

principles” of good scrutiny] that were first developed nearly twenty years ago.   

  

7.5  During the COVID-19 pandemic, CfGS developed ‘step back reviews’. These 

reviews are geared to give the opportunity for councils to conduct short, sharp 

reviews to identify lessons learned to inform the approach to any new 

arrangements that emerge for the ‘new normal’. The review is designed to be 

challenging, but essentially also to be constructive in suggesting ways to drive 

forward improvement.   

  

7.6  Consequently with the support of the Council’s political group leaders, CfGS 

were commissioned to conduct a ‘step back’ review. The LGA agreed to fund 

50% of the cost of conducting the review.  

 

 

Page 6



  

8.  CfGS Review  

   

8.1  The review was a short and simple ‘step-back’ review based on assessing the 

following:   

  

• Culture. The relationships, communication and behaviours underpinning 

the operation of the overview and scrutiny process. This also involved the 

Council’s corporate approach, organisational commitment, and status of 

scrutiny.   
• Member engagement. Are members motivated and engaged. How do 

they participate, take responsibility, and self-manage their role?   

• Member skills and application. Are skills up-to-date and can Members 

participate fully or are there development gaps?   
• Information. How information is prepared, shared, accessed and used in 

the service of the scrutiny function.   
• Impact. Ways to ensure that scrutiny is effective, that it makes a tangible 

and positive difference to the effectiveness of the council, and to local 

people.    
• Focus. How prioritisation, timeliness and relevance of the work 

programme and agendas lead to value-adding and productivity.    
• Structure. Formats used by scrutiny to carry out its works and their 

effectiveness.    

   

8.2 The review involved conversations with 18 Members and 4 Officers, including 

the Council Leader, Group Leaders, Select Committee Chairs, Vice Chairs, 

Members of the Select Committees, the Council’s senior leadership team and 

Head of Democratic Services, observation of meetings (recordings or live 

online), a review of key documents; agendas, work programmes etc and a 

short member survey.   

   

8.3 This methodology aligns with both latest statutory guidance and best practice 

experience accumulated by CfGS over many years. This review therefore 

evaluated the Council’s approach to scrutiny in the light of the guidance and 

best-practice with a view to help to explore with members ways to improve 

scrutiny.   

  

   

9  Outcome from the Review  

  

9.1  CfGS’s report back to the Council following completion of the review is 

attached at Appendix A.  

  

9.2  CfGS concluded that ‘Scrutiny’s role as part of the democratic decision-

making process is respected and valued in the Council’ and that ‘political 

leaders and Executive Members are supportive. We noted from our 

interviews that the scrutiny function at HPBC is held in a relatively high 

Page 7



regard by the Council overall, further evidenced by Director level 

support for each Select Committee.’ 

   

9.3  The review further noted, that scrutiny has a good relationship with the 

executive, that there is a cross party approach to scrutiny and that our task 

and finish groups were particularly productive. 

   

9.4  CfGS provided feedback and recommendations for further improvement on 8 

areas:  

  

 The focus and priorities of scrutiny 

 Scrutiny’s impact 

 Work programming  

 Member development  

 Meeting management 

 Committee structure 

 Public engagement 

 Support and resourcing for scrutiny 

 

 These are further detailed in the report attached at Appendix A. 

 

 9.5 CfGS also provided guidance / workflow processes for scrutiny from 3 other 

councils, and these are listed as appendixes to the CfGS report: 

 

 Waverley Borough Council – Selection Criteria for Overview and Scrutiny 

topics 

 South Cambridgeshire District Council – PAPER Analysis 

 Warwickshire County Council – Scrutiny Review Process 

  

  

10.  Taking the Recommendations Forward  

  

10.1  Attached at Appendix B is a summary of CfGS’s recommendations within a 

suggested response/action.  

  

10.2 The suggested improvements are as follows: 

 

  The focus and priority of scrutiny 

 Establish Select Committee Programming Group consisting of the 

Executive/Select Committee Chairs / Opposition Group Leaders 

 Consider Executive Work Programme and agree forward plan of scrutiny 

work 

 

  Scrutiny’s Impact 

 Annual scrutiny workshop to confirm work programmes 

Page 8



 Review of Annual Report to include a focus/section on changes –  

  improvements made as a result of scrutiny 

 

Work Programming   

 Review Executive / Scrutiny Protocol 

 Consider development of a methodology for work programme selection 

and prioritisation 

 Reorder Scrutiny Committee agendas to consider work programming at 

the start of the meeting to give it a greater focus 

 

 Member development 

 Programme of training / development for non-executive councillors   

 Ongoing training and development for Chairs / Vice Chairs of Scrutiny  

  

Meeting Management 

 Develop approach with Chairs of Scrutiny Committees 

 

Committee Structure 

 Review number of Select Committees 

 Consider structure of Committees and potential to create standing 

sub/working-groups to focus on specific areas of work 

 

  Public Engagement 

 Develop approach with Chairs of Panels 

 Introduce an open to public scrutiny review suggestion scheme 

 Explore and experiment with ways to allow greater public access, 

openness and involvement   

 

  Support and Resourcing for Scrutiny 

 Officer support for scrutiny to be considered as part of the review of the 

Democratic Services team structure 

 

10.3 Members will want to comment on the proposed areas for improvement and 

 consider which areas should be prioritised for action.  It may be considered 

appropriate to organise an all-member workshop to ensure that the views of 

all councillors are taken into account. 

 

10.4 Members will also want to consider how the proposed areas for improvement 

 meet the original terms of reference and what additional works or actions are 

 needed to complete the review. 

 

10.5  Depending on the approach taken with the suggested areas for improvement, 

any actions that need changes to be made to the Council’s constitution will 

need to be considered with the Council’s Constitution Sub-Committee.  

  

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Andrew Stokes 
Chief Executive 
High Peak Borough Council 

December 2020  

 
Dear Chief Executive, 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                           
Short Scrutiny Improvement Review – CfGS consultancy support 

I am writing to provide feedback following your recent review to reflect our findings and offer some 
suggestions on how the council could develop its scrutiny process. We would like the opportunity as 
part of this process to facilitate a workshop with Members and Officers to reflect on this review and 
to discuss options for improvement. 

Background
 
High Peak Borough Council (HPBC) commissioned the Centre for Governance & Scrutiny (CfGS) 
[formerly CfPS], to review the Council’s scrutiny arrangements through its Select Committees. The 
purpose of the review was to give the Council an external perspective on how well the current model 
is functioning and fulfilling its essential role of policy shaping, holding the executive to account and 
reviewing issues of importance to local communities. 
 
CfGS undertook a review of the current scrutiny arrangements, involving two days of evidence 
gathering through conversations with Members and Officers on 28th and 29th September 2020. In 
addition, we observed Select Committee meetings, reviewed key documents, and created and 
analysed a Member survey. 
 
CfGS met with 18 Members and 4 Officers, including the Council Leader, Group Leaders, Select 
Committee Chairs, Vice Chairs, Members of the Select Committees, the Council’s senior leadership 
team and Head of Democratic & Community Services. 
 
The review was conducted by the CfGS staff: 
• Ian Parry – Head of Consultancy - Centre for Governance and Scrutiny. 
• Kate Grigg – Senior Research Officer – Centre for Governance and Scrutiny. 

 
The findings and recommendations presented in this letter are intended to advise HPBC in 
strengthening the quality of scrutiny activities, and through its Members, to develop a strong and 
shared understanding of the role and capability of the scrutiny function. 
 

 
Summary of findings 
 
1. Positive areas to build on 
 

1.1 Scrutiny has support from the Council overall 

Scrutiny’s role as part of the democratic decision-making process is respected and valued in the 
Council - political leaders and Executive Members are supportive. We noted from our interviews that 
the scrutiny function at HPBC is held in a relatively high regard by the Council overall, further 

Page 11



 

 

evidenced by Director level support for each Select Committee.  
 

1.2 Scrutiny has a good relationship with the Executive 
 
HPBC has good attendance from the Executive at Select Committee meetings, they are open to 
presenting their reports, answering questions, and being robustly challenged. It was also made clear 
to us through our interviews that the Executive is open to suggestions for improvement from Select 
Committees and takes an encouraging approach to this.  
 

1.3 Cross-party approach to scrutiny 

From our observations and interviews it is clear that the different political parties at HPBC work well 
together, and the Select Committees are not characterised as adversarial or confrontational. In 
general, there is a constructive cross-party working atmosphere that seeks broad consensus. There 
is little evidence of political management activity and Member behaviour is cordial and respectful. 
 
1.4 Productive task and finish group work 
 
It was highlighted in our conversations with Members and Officers that some of the best examples of 
recent scrutiny work have been undertaken in task and finish groups (T&F), the Waste Sub-
Committee a specific case in point. Scrutiny’s T&F work has been used effectively, and this type of 
more in-depth scrutiny can be highly productive and useful to HPBC. These T&F assignments or 
similar focused ‘project scrutiny’ can build further versatility and agility for scrutiny. It is essential 
however, that these are limited to a small number per year (perhaps 1-2), have a detailed scope and 
timeframe (suggest max 8 weeks) and have a clear objective which delivers a useful product. 
 
2. Suggestions for further improvement 
 
There is a clear realisation and commitment from Members and Officers that scrutiny activity at 
HPBC could be more effective and productive. Everyone interviewed welcomed the opportunity to 
make changes and improvements and supported the need for scrutiny to develop further and make 
a greater impact. 

To build upon the existing support for scrutiny, HPBC could adopt a Scrutiny - Executive protocol, 
this would outline how Select Committees, the Executive and Officers would work together to ensure 
each part works collaboratively and ensure council wide ownership and support for the sustained 
success of scrutiny. 

 
2.1 The focus and priorities of scrutiny 

From our observations and evidence gathering, the Select Committees may benefit from ensuring 
greater clarity about what they are trying to achieve or what impact they are aiming to make. 
Similarly, the process for deciding what is important to scrutinise and what is not, is sometimes 
unclear. It seems that by convention every single executive decision goes through Select 
Committee, without much regard to prioritisation. Scrutiny cannot examine everything, nor is it 
necessary to do so, therefore establishing realistic priorities based on clear objectives is essential.  
 
Select Committees do make every effort to be strategic and focus on areas of importance, although 
in practice it sometimes falls short of this ambition. Select Committees can be too operational and 
council performance focused. It is therefore necessary to ‘let go’ of KPI concentrated work, and 
focus resource on strategy and policy. 
 
 

Page 12



 

 

2.2 Scrutiny’s impact 
 
There is scope for each Select Committee to review its agendas to ensure that they maintain a focus 
on crucial issues. Agendas can often become overburdened with routine reporting and discussion-
led topics, leaving less capacity for the matters that can make a real impact.  
 
It was highlighted to us that Select Committees are very useful at conveying the views of different 
Members to the Executive, but it is hard to see how that translates into policy changes. Early access 
to information is important for scrutiny to operate as an integral part of policy and decision-making 
activities. The ability for Select Committees to engage early in the process of policy development will 
also assist scrutiny in making a greater impact.  
 
Scrutiny often has greater impact when it applies its efforts to pre-decision scrutiny. This is partially 
practiced at High Peak, although it is usually too close to the decision by the executive to play a 
useful shaping role and is limited to a binary choice of “for or against” pending Executive decisions. 
If scrutiny operated more up-stream, as policy and decisions were in a less advanced stage, it could 
provide useful insight, constructive challenge and creative input at a more strategic and forward-
looking level. 

 
2.3 Work programming 
  
There is a positive working relationship between the Executive and Select Committees, but the 
relationship has been described as a bit ‘too close’ at times, with the Executive having perhaps too 
much influence and involvement on Select Committee work programming and agendas. Whilst 
regular communication between the Executive and Select Committees is important, and suggestions 
for topics on the work programme or agenda should be welcomed, the scrutiny process does need 
to be independent. 
 
It is also noted that there has been some significant senior Officer time spent in supporting Members 
with the process of work programming, so it would be recommended that Members, led by 
committee Chairs switch the emphasis of work planning to be more Member-led where possible. 

To avoid low priority issues making their way onto the work programme and to ensure focus on high 
impact items, Select Committee Members might consider developing a methodology for their work 
programme selection and prioritisation, given that the sources to choose from (including Council 
Plan, MTFS, Delivery Plans, Executive forward plan/key decisions etc.) provide an extensive menu 
of options. The need to rationalise selection could be helped by a simple scoring or prioritisation 
process. 
 
Some examples of other local authority tools to prioritise and select items for scrutiny are included in 
the Appendix to this short report. 

 
 

2.4 Member development 

Training and development were issues raised by some Members, who were clearly aware of the 
gaps in their knowledge and understanding. It has been noted that there has been a relatively big 
turnover of Members at the last election in High Peak, so many are new to the role of being an 
elected councillor and to the role of scrutiny, who would benefit from further training and 
development. 

 
Whilst most Members take the opportunity to speak at committee, the engagement and contribution 
is varied. Some Members tend to ask information-gathering questions, rather than questions which 
explore and challenge issues, with often just a few members asking most of the more probing 

Page 13



 

 

questions. Members may benefit from more training and experience in the area of questioning 
techniques. 
 
2.5 Meeting management 

It has been highlighted that meetings could adopt a more logical approach in organising their line of 
enquiry. Currently just the Chair and Vice Chair have a pre-meet without any organised input from 
other committee Members (aside from the pre-meetings that occur in political groupings). 
 
Select Committees at HPBC might consider ways to give more time to planning and organising 
scrutiny meetings as a ‘team’, to set objectives and the agenda, as well as developing appropriate 
lines of enquiry. By using a brief pre-meeting, committees could effectively set a questioning 
strategy and decide who they would require to appear at the meeting, as well as the expectations on 
information needed. 
 
2.6 Committee structure 

The council has three Select Committees, which is not unusual, but there is a growing trend towards 
less committees, especially if work can be prioritised well and focused on strategic issues. Scrutiny’s 
productivity is not measured by the volume of activity but the quality of its outputs, such as - 
constructive recommendations, ideas and feedback, and holding to account that leads to positive 
improvement. 
 
The council might wish to consider the option of two committees, one with an external focus - 
community impact, resident voice and service performance, and one with an internal focus - as a 
corporate and forward looking, policy and planning scrutiny role. 

 

2.7 Public engagement 

Whilst trying to encourage public engagement is difficult, scrutiny could explore and experiment with 
ways to allow greater access, openness and involvement. This could include:  

• Community listening panels 
• Inviting the public to offer ideas for work programmes 
• Greater use of social media channels 

 
HPBC could also consider inviting external advisors to sit as observer status non-voting members of 
committees to provide additional insight and expertise to the committee. They could be set period 
appointments or invited to a one-off relevant meeting. Payment or reimbursement many encourage 
candidates. Some selection may be necessary, and terms of reference made clear. 
 

 
2.8 Support and resourcing for scrutiny 
 
There is potential to review whether the level of officer resource available to support scrutiny is 
sufficient at HPBC. Whilst the current resource is highly valued, scrutiny would benefit from additional 
capacity, particularly in terms of research and policy support. Not only would this further reinforce a 
strong ongoing commitment to scrutiny across the council, it would also provide a strong platform 
upon which scrutiny could successfully develop. 
 
 
Thank you and acknowledgements 
 
This short review forms part of a Member development programme which includes several training 
and development sessions to be facilitated by CfGS. 

Page 14



 

 

 
We would like to thank the Chairs, Vice-Chairs and Select Committee Members, Executive 
Members, and Officers who took part in interviews, survey and observations, for their time, insights 
and open views.  

 
       Yours sincerely, 
 
       Kate Grigg 
       Senior Research Officer / Review Lead 
 
  

Page 15



 

 

Appendix – Examples of scrutiny work programming selection/prioritisation tools 
 
Waverley Borough Council1 

 

 
1https://www.waverley.gov.uk/download/downloads/id/5879/selection_criteria_for_overview_and_scrutin
y_topics.pdf 
 

Page 16

https://www.waverley.gov.uk/download/downloads/id/5879/selection_criteria_for_overview_and_scrutiny_topics.pdf
https://www.waverley.gov.uk/download/downloads/id/5879/selection_criteria_for_overview_and_scrutiny_topics.pdf


 

 

South Cambridgeshire District Council2  
 

  

 
2https://scambs.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s50149/Criteria%20for%20Scrutiny%20and%20Overview
%20Topic%20Selection.pdf 

Page 17

https://scambs.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s50149/Criteria%20for%20Scrutiny%20and%20Overview%20Topic%20Selection.pdf
https://scambs.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s50149/Criteria%20for%20Scrutiny%20and%20Overview%20Topic%20Selection.pdf


 

 

Warwickshire County Council3 

 

 
3 https://api.warwickshire.gov.uk/documents/WCCC-970-53 

Page 18

https://api.warwickshire.gov.uk/documents/WCCC-970-53


 
 

CfGS – HPBC Scrutiny Review Recommendations – Suggested Response 
 

Area CfGS Recommendations Suggested Response 

The Focus and Priorities of 
Scrutiny 
 

From our observations and evidence gathering, 
the Select Committees may benefit from ensuring 
greater clarity about what they are trying to 
achieve or what impact they are aiming to make. 
Similarly, the process for deciding what is 
important to scrutinise and what is not, is 
sometimes unclear. It seems that by convention 
every single executive decision goes through 
Select Committee, without much regard to 
prioritisation. Scrutiny cannot examine everything, 
nor is it necessary to do so, therefore establishing 
realistic priorities based on clear objectives is 
essential.  
 
Select Committees do make every effort to be 
strategic and focus on areas of importance, 
although in practice it sometimes falls short of this 
ambition. Select Committees can be too 
operational and council performance focused. It is 
therefore necessary to ‘let go’ of KPI 
concentrated work, and focus resource on 
strategy and policy. 
 

 Establish Select Committee 
Programming Group: 
 
o Executive/Select 

Committee Chairs / 
Opposition Group Leaders 
 

 Consider Executive Work 
Programme and agree forward 
plan of scrutiny work 
 

Scrutiny’s impact There is scope for each Select Committee to 
review its agendas to ensure that they maintain a 
focus on crucial issues. Agendas can often 
become overburdened with routine reporting and 
discussion-led topics, leaving less capacity for the 
matters that can make a real impact.  
 
It was highlighted to us that Select Committees 
are very useful at conveying the views of different 
Members to the Executive, but it is hard to see 
how that translates into policy changes. Early 
access to information is important for scrutiny to 
operate as an integral part of policy and decision-
making activities. The ability for Select 
Committees to engage early in the process of 
policy development will also assist scrutiny in 
making a greater impact.  
 
Scrutiny often has greater impact when it applies 
its efforts to pre-decision scrutiny. This is partially 
practiced at High Peak, although it is usually too 
close to the decision by the executive to play a 
useful shaping role and is limited to a binary 
choice of “for or against” pending Executive 
decisions. If scrutiny operated more up-stream, 
as policy and decisions were in a less advanced 
stage, it could provide useful insight, constructive 
challenge and creative input at a more strategic 
and forward-looking level. 
 

 Annual scrutiny workshop to 
confirm work programmes 

 Review of Annual Report to 
include a focus - section on 
changes as a result of scrutiny 

Work Programming There is a positive working relationship between 
the Executive and Select Committees, but the 
relationship has been described as a bit ‘too 
close’ at times, with the Executive having perhaps 
too much influence and involvement on Select 
Committee work programming and agendas. 
Whilst regular communication between the 
Executive and Select Committees is important, 

 Review Executive / Scrutiny 
Protocol 

 Annual scrutiny workshop to 
confirm work programmes 
Consider development of a 
methodology for work 
programme selection and 
prioritisation 

Page 19



Area CfGS Recommendations Suggested Response 
and suggestions for topics on the work 
programme or agenda should be welcomed, the 
scrutiny process does need to be independent. 
 
It is also noted that there has been some 
significant senior Officer time spent in supporting 
Members with the process of work programming, 
so it would be recommended that Members, led 
by committee Chairs switch the emphasis of work 
planning to be more Member-led where possible. 
 
To avoid low priority issues making their way onto 
the work programme and to ensure focus on high 
impact items, Select Committee Members might 
consider developing a methodology for their work 
programme selection and prioritisation, given that 
the sources to choose from (including Council 
Plan, MTFS, Delivery Plans, Executive forward 
plan/key decisions etc.) provide an extensive 
menu of options. The need to rationalise selection 
could be helped by a simple scoring or 
prioritisation process. 
 

Reorder Scrutiny Committee  
agendas to consider work 
programming at the start of the 
meeting to give it a greater 
focus 

Member development It has been noted that there has been a relatively 
big turnover of Members at the last election in 
High Peak, so many are new to the role of being 
an elected councillor and to the role of scrutiny, 
who would benefit from further training and 
development. 
 
Whilst most Members take the opportunity to 
speak at committee, the engagement and 
contribution is varied. Some Members tend to ask 
information-gathering questions, rather than 
questions which explore and challenge issues, 
with often just a few members asking most of the 
more probing questions. Members may benefit 
from more training and experience in the area of 
questioning techniques. 
 

 Programme of training / 
development for non-executive 
councillors  

 Ongoing training and 
development for Chairs / Vice 
Chairs of Scrutiny 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Meeting management It has been highlighted that meetings could adopt 

a more logical approach in organising their line of 
enquiry. Currently just the Chair and Vice Chair 
have a pre-meet without any organised input from 
other committee Members (aside from the pre-
meetings that occur in political groupings). 
 
Select Committees at HPBC might consider ways 
to give more time to planning and organising 
scrutiny meetings as a ‘team’, to set objectives 
and the agenda, as well as developing 
appropriate lines of enquiry. By using a brief pre-
meeting, committees could effectively set a 
questioning strategy and decide who they would 
require to appear at the meeting, as well as the 
expectations on information needed. 

 Develop approach with Chairs 
of Panels 

Committee structure The council has three Select Committees, which 
is not unusual, but there is a growing trend 
towards less committees, especially if work can 
be prioritised well and focused on strategic 
issues. Scrutiny’s productivity is not measured by 
the volume of activity but the quality of its outputs, 
such as - constructive recommendations, ideas 
and feedback, and holding to account that leads 

 Review number of Select 
Committees 

 Consider structure of 
Committees and potential to 
create standing sub/working-
groups to focus on specific 
areas of work  
 

Page 20



Area CfGS Recommendations Suggested Response 
to positive improvement. 
 
The council might wish to consider the option of 
two committees, one with an external focus  - 
community impact, resident voice and service 
performance, and one with an internal focus - as 
a corporate and forward looking, policy and 
planning scrutiny role. 
 

Public engagement Whilst trying to encourage public engagement is 
difficult, scrutiny could explore and experiment 
with ways to allow greater access, openness and 
involvement. This could include:  
 

 Community listening panels 

 Inviting the public to offer ideas for work 
programmes 

 Greater use of social media channels 
 
HPBC could also consider inviting external 
advisors to sit as observer status non-voting 
members of committees to provide additional 
insight and expertise to the committee. They 
could be set period appointments or invited to a 
one-off relevant meeting. Payment or 
reimbursement many encourage candidates. 
Some selection may be necessary, and terms of 
reference made clear. 

 Develop approach with Chairs 
of Panels 

 Introduce an open to public 
scrutiny review suggestion 
scheme 

 Explore and experiment with 
ways to allow greater public 
access, openness and 
involvement 

Support and Resourcing for 
Scrutiny 

There is potential to review whether the level of 
officer resource available to support scrutiny is 
sufficient at HPBC. Whilst the current resource is 
highly valued, scrutiny would benefit from 
additional capacity, particularly in terms of 
research and policy support. Not only would this 
further reinforce a strong ongoing commitment to 
scrutiny across the council, it would also provide 
a strong platform upon which scrutiny could 
successfully develop. 
 

 Officer support for scrutiny to 
be considered as part of the 
review of the Democratic 
Services team structure 

 
 
 

 

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Scrutiny Review
	Appendix A
	Appendix B


